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11 July 2009
Richard Glenn
Assistant Secretary

Personal Property Securities Branch
Australian Government
Attorney-General’s Department
Robert Garran Offices
National Circuit
BARTON  ACT  2600
CC: 
Senate Standing Committee on Legal & Constitutional Affairs


Commonwealth and Victorian Privacy Commissioners


Consumer Action Law Centre, Victoria


Legal Aid Queensland


Information Integrity Solutions Pty Ltd


Ms Lee Rhiannon, MLC, NSW Parliament
Dear Mr Glenn
Missing Privacy Impact Assessment hinders debate on the Personal Property Securities Register 
We are very concerned that the absence of the Privacy Impact Assessment Report makes it impossible to have a properly informed debate about the authorising legislation for the PPS Register.
 

We note the government's response (tabled on 8 June) to Recommendation 5 in the Senate Legal & Constitutional Affairs Committee's March 2009 report on the exposure draft legislation:
"A Privacy Impact Assessment will be undertaken by an appropriately qualified independent person or organisation. The assessment will be published on the Department’s website. Having regard to recommendation 4 of the minority report, this will occur within two months of the completion of the assessment."

We also note that the PPS pages on the AGD website contain the further information:
"In May 2009, the Australian Attorney-General's Department engaged external agency Information Integrity Solutions to undertake a Privacy Impact Assessment which we expect to be completed in June 2009. The privacy impact assessment will be made publicly available."

We further note that in debate in the NSW Legislative Council on 17 June on the Personal Property Securities (Commonwealth Powers) Bill 2009 , Parliamentary Secretary the Hon. Penny Sharpe answered a question from Ms Lee Rhiannon as follows:
"With regard to privacy, I am advised that the Australian Government has engaged external consultants Information Integrity Services to undertake a privacy impact assessment in relation to this bill taking into account the recommendations and comments of the Senate committee. The external agency performing the assessment held a consultative forum to seek the views of parties who have expressed privacy concerns about the bill. A report will be produced on the assessment and will be made available shortly. Consideration will be given to any proposed changes to the bill that may arise out of the privacy impact assessment" (Hansard, NSW LC, 17 June 2009, 6.00 pm)

One might reasonably expect from all these statements that the PIA report would be available in time for the next stages of consideration of the PPS Register proposal.  
However, we also note that the government has introduced the legislation to establish the PPS Register (the Personal Property Securities Bill 2009) into Parliament, and that the Bill is now being considered by the Senate Legal & Constitutional Committee.  The Committee has called for submissions by 31 July, including by specific invitation to the Foundation, and has a reporting date of 17 August.
 

The value of the Privacy Impact Assessment will be seriously diminished if it is not made available in time to inform submissions to the Senate Committee on the Bill.  Even if the PIA report is made public in time for the subsequent Senate consideration of the Bill, the major opportunity for considered debate will have been lost.
 

We and other public interest groups had the opportunity to contribute to the PIA, including at a meeting on 25 May with the IIS consultants and representatives of the Commonwealth and Victorian Privacy Commissioners, and an officer from your Branch.  We were given to understand that time was short and went to some trouble to participate in the meeting and provide subsequent comments by email - on 12 June. We understand that both Consumer Action Law Centre and Legal Aid Queensland also provided input. 
 

The subsequent delay in completing and publishing the report is inexplicable, and calls into question the government's sincerity and commitment to a properly informed debate on the privacy implications of the Bill.
 

We urge the Department to release the PIA report as soon as possible and well before the closing date for submissions to the Senate Committee.
 
Yours sincerely

Nigel Waters
Board Member

Board5@privacy.org.au
02 4981 0828 or 0407 230342
The APF  –  Australia’s leading public interest voice in the privacy arena since 1987


